
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

                                                                        APRIL 2, 2012 

6:30 P.M.                                                                           

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE       

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / March 19, 2012 

                                                   Council Work Session minutes / March 12, 2012 

                                                   Special Called Council meeting minutes / March 26, 2012 

 

PROCLAMATION:   National Public Safety Telecommunicators Week / April 8-14, 2012 

                    

 PUBLIC HEARINGS:  1.)    Codification of Ordinances 

 

                                         2.)    Rezone: Blacksher White-Spunner,  etal 

   Location:                 Southwest of the intersection of U.S. Highway 90 and  

                                                                County Road 13 

                               Present Zoning:       R-3, High Density Single Family Residential District 

                               Proposed Zoning:    B-1, Local Business 

                               Recommendation:   Failed to set forth a favorable recommendation / A super majority       

                                                                vote is needed for a favorable recommendation, and the vote was  

                                                                five (5) affirmative  - one (1) dissenting  / Ordinance 2012-27 

                             

                                               

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware    

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Lake                  

 C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –   Boulware     

          Review minutes / March 14
th
  

               

    D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Reese  

    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  - Conaway   

           

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones  

          Resignation of Tony Felts (Supernumerary)   /  Need replacement 

 

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette                     

    C.  Industrial Development Board –  Conaway   
          Review minutes / March 26

th
  

 

    D.  Library Board – Lake   

  E.  Planning Commission – Barnette       
          Review minutes / February 23

rd
  

 

   F.  Recreation Board – Reese        

    G.  Utility Board - Scott    

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayor’s Report    
           a.)   Parade Permit / Christ the King Catholic School / 1 Mile Fun Run / April 27, 2012  

           b.)   Parade Permit / Lupus Foundation / Fund Raiser / March 16, 2013  

           c.)   Parade Permit / Christ the King Respect for Life Committee / Annual Life Pilgrimage / April 28, 2012    

 
1



COUNCIL AGENDA                                               APRIL 2, 2012                                          PAGE   2 

 

 

     B.  City Attorney’s Report  

C. Department Head Comments    

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:              

 

       

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

     

RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)    Calling for the Redemption of the City’s General Obligation Warrants, Series 2002 

         and the Redemption of the City’s Limited Obligation Special Tax   

         Warrants, Series 2006. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-28 

 

 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

 

         2
ND

 READ 
a.)   Adopting the Rules of Procedure in All Instances for Meetings of the  

       City Council. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-21 

 

b.)  Appropriation of Funds: City Hall Roof Repair. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-22 

 

c.)  Appropriation of Funds: Civic Center Kitchen Hood Fire Suppression  

      System. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-23 

 

d.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Legislative Phone/Internet Budget . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-24 

 

e.)   Appropriation of Funds: Youth Spring Soccer Program . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-25 

 

f.)   Authorizing the Issuance of General Obligation Refunding and  

       Improvement Warrants Series 2012. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-26 

 

 

       1
ST

 READ 
g.)   Rezone: Blacksher White-Spunner, etal. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-27 

 

h.)   Codification of Ordinances. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-28 

 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

2



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   
 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY               PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN REESE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR YELDING    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

CITY CLERK: 

 

DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

3



                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             

4



MARCH 19, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Invocation was given by Councilman Lake. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; Ron 

Scott; August Palumbo. 

 

ABSENT: Derek Boulware. 

 

Also present: Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, 

City Attorney; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Richard Johnson, Publics Works Director; Tonja 

Young, Library Director; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; 

James White, Fire Chief; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director 

Richard Merchant, Building Official; Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director; Scott Hutchinson, City 

Engineer; Erick Bussey, Attorney, Ross, Jordan & Gray; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Dorothy 

Morrison, Beautification Committee; Ken Balme, Downtown Redevelopment Authority and Daphne 

Museum; Joe Lemoine, Planning Commission; Joe Davis, IDB. 

 

Absent: Kim Briley, Finance Director. 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to amend the March 5, 2012 Council meeting minutes under 

the Utility Board report amending the statement “The board has resurfaced Well Road all the 

Way to Public Works Road, and Public Works Road all the way to Austin Park has been 

resurfaced as well.   There is a proposal that the board will discuss at a later time of extending Well 

Road all the way to County Road 13.” To reflect that the Utility Board did not pave Public Works 

Road down to Austin Park nor is it planning to extend Well Road all the way to County Road 13, 

and to adopt the March 5, 2012 as amended.    Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR                NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt the March 12, 2012 Council Work Session 

minutes.  Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

AYE    Reese, Scott, Palumbo                                                ABSTAIN    Conaway, Lake, Barnette 

 

                                                              MOTION FAILED 
 

 

 

5



MARCH 19, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

 

PRESENTATION:        Present a copy of the book: Images of America “Daphne” to the City /  

                                         Harriet Outlaw & Ms. Penny Taylor 

 

Ms. Outlaw gave a presentation on the book, and presented a shadow box book to the Mayor.  Ms. 

Outlaw recognized the contribution of Mr. Al Guarisco in writing the book.  She also thanked the 

Daphne Museum for their support.  There will be a reception and book signing at the Museum. 

 

 

4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 
   A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 

Mr. Scott stated that the minutes are in the packet for the March 12
th

 meeting 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to authorize going out for bid: for the City Hall roof repair.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

Treasurers Report / February 2012 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to accept the Treasurers Report as of February, 2012 in the 

amount of $20,976,966.01.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

Sales & Use Tax Collections / January 2012 

 

Sales and Use Tax Collected for January 2012    -   $809,785 

Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for January 2012    -   $834,336               

Under Budget (for January)                                  -   ($  24,551) 

 

YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $54,852  

 

Lodging Tax Collections / January 2012 

 

The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $41,917 collected for January, 2012.  Discussion continued 

that while the collections were lower than last year it was noted that last years was most likely higher 

than usual due to the BP Oil Spill hotel personnel lodging. 

 

The next meeting will be April 9
th

 at 4:00 p.m. in the Executive Conference room. 

 

Councilman Palumbo asked when they will know how much they have in reserve. 

 

6



MARCH 19, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

Ms. Ciancetta stated that they will receive the preliminary report in April. 

 

 

B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

The minutes for the March 5
th

 meeting are in the packet.  Some of the items are the same as what was 

considered under finance. 

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Boulware 

Mr. Reese reported that the committee met last week, but the minutes are not in the packet.  They 

discussed the ISO rating, and that the new annexations may affect the rating. 

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE –  Boulware 

The minutes for the March 14
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Conaway 

The committee met this afternoon, and there was a motion made at that meeting that needs council 

approval: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to suspend the rules to consider a motion to authorize a Letter 

of Endorsement for the Weeks Bay Reserve’s project titled: “Minimizing runoff nutrient 

pollution with marsh restoration in a world of rising seas” be prepared.  Seconded by  

Councilwoman Conaway.   

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 

Conaway  Aye     Scott   Aye 

Lake   Aye     Palumbo  Aye 

Reese  Aye     Barnette  Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to authorize a Letter of Endorsement for Weeks Bay 

Reserve’s project titled: “Minimizing runoff nutrient pollution with marsh restoration in a 

world of rising seas” be prepared.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No meeting in March. 

 

 

7



MARCH 19, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 

The next meeting will be Monday at 5:30 p.m.  

 

C. Industrial Development Board – Conaway 
 No report. 

 

D. Library Board – Lake 

The minutes for the January 6
th

 and February 2
nd

 meeting are in the packet 

 

E. Planning Commission – Barnette 

The regular Planning Commission meeting will be Thursday at 5:00 p.m. in the council chambers. 

 

F. Recreation Board - Reese 

There was a meeting last week, but Councilman Reese could not attend. 

 

G. Utility Board – Scott 

The minutes for the January 25
th

 meeting are in the packet.  The March meeting will be held April 4
th

 

at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

    A.  Mayor’s Report 

 
 a.)   Parade Permit / Daphne United Methodist Church / April 7, 2012  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the Parade Permit for Daphne United Methodist 

Church / April 7, 2012.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

  b.)   Voting Delegate / AL League of Municipalities Convention / May 19-21, 2012 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to appoint Councilman Lake as Voting Delegate for the AL 

League of Municipalities Convention / May 19-21, 2012.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8



MARCH 19, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

 

 

  c.)   Authorize Going Out for Bid on Road Projects 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the going out for bid on the road projects presented 

on  page 19 of the council packet. (List is spread out upon these minutes.)  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

    B.  City Attorney Report 

Mr. Ross reported that the Scott Curtis lawsuit settlement was closed last Thursday.  He thanked the 

Mayor, Richard Johnson and Ashley Campbell for their help.   

 

C. Department Head Comments: 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – recognized the hard work on the landscape that the 

Beautification Committee and Grounds Department has done at the point at Kentucky Fried Chicken 

and Scenic Highway 98.  He encouraged everyone to by to see the landscaping. 

 

Christine Ciancetta – Deputy Finance Director - reported that she met with two (2) more credit card 

companies.  She explained that they had to look at platforms for each department’s needs.  She is 

working with HR on immigration reports, and they are working on the preliminary financial statement. 

 

Richard Merchant – Building Official – reported that he will be presenting the new building codes to 

the Buildings & Property Committee in the future. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director - reported that Ballroom Dance tickets go on sale 

tomorrow, and the Mobile Bottle Collectors will be at the Civic Center March 23-24, and is open to 

the public. 

 

Tonja Young – Library Director - reported that there will be kids activities during spring break.  She 

also reported that the board voted to change the meeting day to the second Thursday of the month 

instead of the first Thursday. 

 

James White – Fire Chief – reported that they have been awarded an AFG grant in the amount of 

$55,800.  They will purchase nine SCBA’s and one thermal imaging camera. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported they have started spring sports.  They had the first 

Sunset Series Concerts at Bay Front Park, and Brown Bag-By-the-Bay will start the first Thursday in 

April. He thanked the Church of the Eastern Shore for their help in cleaning up the parks. 

 

David Carpenter – Police Chief -  reported that they were in Fairhope Friday for the Special Olympics 

where they participated in the run from the high school to the stadium, and afterwards they went 

around the track with some of the kids.  He said it was a great event. 

9



MARCH 19, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

6 

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Mr. Joe Davis – 30757 Pine Court – spoke regarding grant for the watershed, and that the 

TimberCreek Property Owners Association and the developers that are looking at an additional phase 

will be meeting to discuss items of common interest, and upstream activity, and how it impacts 

Daphne. 

 

 

 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 
a.)  Hazardous Mitigation Grant / Santa Rosa Avenue Drainage Improvements . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-21 

 

b.)   Sales Tax Holiday. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-22  

 

c.)    Bid Award: Asphalt Hotbox Reclaimer Trailer Unit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-23 

 

d.)    Bid Award: PW/Truck: 8-10 Yard Dump Truck. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-24 

 

e.)    Bid Award: PW/Roller Compactor / Tow Behind. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-25 

 

f.)     Declaring Certain Property Surplus / Donation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-26 

 

g.)    Declaring Certain Property Surplus . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-27 

 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to waive the reading of Resolutions 2012-21, 2012-22, 

2012-23, 2012-24, 2012-25, 2012-26 and 2012-27.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Resolution 2012-21.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR              NAY   NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt of Resolution 2012-22.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway.  

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED            MOTION CARRIED     

10



MARCH 19, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

7 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Resolution 2012-23, 2012-24 and 2012-25.  

Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Resolution 2012-26.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Reese, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette                    NAY    Lake    

                                          

                                                                   MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Resolution 2012-27.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Reese, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette                      NAY   Lake     

 

                                                                 MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

 

        2
ND

  READ  
a.)    Amendment to the Land Use & Development Ordinance /  

       Revisions to Zoning Map . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-19 

 

b.)   Annexation: Woodrow Lane Right-of-Way . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-20 

 

 

       1
ST

 READ 
c.)   Adopting the Rules of Procedure in All Instances for Meetings of the  

       City Council . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-21 

 

d.)  Appropriation of Funds: City Hall Roof Repair . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-22 

 

e.)  Appropriation of Funds: Civic Center Kitchen Hood Fire Suppression System . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-23 

 

f.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Legislative Phone/Internet Budget . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-24 

 

g.)   Appropriation of Funds: Youth Spring Soccer Program . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-25 

 

 

11



MARCH 19, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

8 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to waive the reading of Ordinances 2012-19 and, 2012-20.  

Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED              
 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Ordinance 2012-19.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED                                                                        

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Ordinance 2012-20  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

Ordinances 2012-21, 2012-22, 2012-23, 2012-24 and 2012-25 were made 1
st
 Read. 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

 

8. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Mayor Yelding stated that he represented the city at the Special Olympics.  He said it was beautiful, and that 

everyone should take part.  He really enjoyed it.  He attended a meeting Friday at Westminster Village 

regarding Joe’s Branch.  They are going to start that restoration process soon where they will be what is 

called a step stool.   

 

Councilman Scott – he is getting inquiries from people on Highway 181 that are still in the county, and they 

are wondering if they are going to have a say in their future since Daphne has annexed that road.  Some of 

the inquiries, as far as annexing additional subdivisions within the city, and the question comes up does the 

city have an up-to-date comprehensive plan, and, unfortunately, they still have the same plan that they 

inherited.  He thinks this should get started right away with the updating process. 

 

Councilman Palumbo stated that the Special Olympics is very uplifting.  He wanted to give kudos to new 

partners in the Special Olympics one is Daphne Utilities who came gave out water to anyone who wanted it, 

and other things, and the other is the Daphne Bocce Club which for the first time  was a village event, and 

quite a few kids participated.  He thanked the Recreation Department for helping.  He thanked Ms. Outlaw 

and Ms. Taylor for their presentation of the book.   

 

Council President Barnette thanked the museum as well for coming out and keeping Daphne’s history 

alive.  Daphne has a unique history and they do not want to lose it, and they need to continue to capture it. 

She would like to work to make that a priority, and the museum certainly supports that.  The reception is 

March 24
th

 from 1:00 – 4:00 p.m. 

 

 

 
12



MARCH 19, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

9 

 

 

9. ADJOURN 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:22 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,    

                         

                             
________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC                 

                                                           Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

       ________________________________                                                                              

       Cathy S. Barnette, 

       Council President  

13



14



MARCH 12, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Kelly Reese; Ron Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

ABSENT: Tommie Conaway; Cathy Barnette; John Lake. 

 

Also present: Mayor Yelding; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; 

Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; David 

McKelroy, Recreation Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center 

Director; Jason Crane, Attorney; Erick Bussey, Attorney. 

 

Absent: David Cohen, City Clerk. 

 

Council President Pro tem Boulware called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. 

 

1. OLDS EASEMENT / JAY ROSS 

Mr. Ross asked to postpone discussion, because they are not quite ready.  He reported that they will 

close on the Scott Curtis matter this week.  

 

2. AMENDING ORDINANCE 2009-21 / COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Council discussed suspension of the rules, and whether it is unanimous or 2/3 vote.  Council likes 

having two (2) reads on ordinances so as not to rush into anything. 

 

Consensus of Council was to delete Section XXII and change the wording to Section XVII to say 

that a unanimous vote is required to suspend the rules. 

 

Mr. Ross said that he would amend the ordinance and send it to Mrs. Hayes. 

 

 

 

3. AMENDING ORDINANCE 1993-16 / REGULATING THE USE OF ALCOHOLIC 

BEVERAGES WITHIN THE CITY OF DAPHNE                                                                                                                                                                                                 

Discussion of this ordinance came up due to a request from the Daphne Museum Board.  They want 

to have a reception and serve wine at the museum.  After review of the ordinance the City Attorney 

opinioned that they could not serve alcoholic beverages.  Council discussed the ordinance and 

mentioned that according to the ordinance people could not have alcoholic beverages at block 

parties, because the streets are city property.   

 

Consensus of council was to send the ordinance to the Ordinance Committee for review. 

 

 

4. CAPITAL BUDGET 

Mayor Yelding stated that he asked the Department Heads to send in their top three (3) capital 

budget priorities for this fiscal year.  They may have to cut a lot, but this is the current list. 

 

Christine presented the capital budget to council.  (Handout by Ms. Ciancetta is spread out upon 

these minutes) 

15



MARCH 12, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

2 

 

 

Council discussed the list and asked questions. 

 

Council cannot make any decisions regarding the capital budget until they get the figures for what is 

in the reserves. 

 

5. ROAD PROJECTS 

Mr. Richard Johnson, Public Works Director, presented information regarding the ATRIP grant.  If 

the city receives a grant it will be an 80/20 match.  There will be three (3) phases of the grant.  

Submission deadline for the first phase is the end of March 2012, the second phase deadline is the 

end of October 2012 and the deadline for the third phase if March 2012.   The roads to be submitted 

for each phase is presented in a handout by Mr. Johnson.  (Handout is spread out upon these 

minutes)   

 

 

6.  DISCUSS WHATEVER ELSE IS DEEMED NECESSARY 

Council did not have any other items to discuss. 

 

 

7.  ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

                                                     

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

David L. Cohen,                                                                     

City Clerk, MMC                                                                                                                                             
       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

 

       ________________________________      

      Derek Boulware,     

      Council President Pro tem       

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



MARCH 26, 2012 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 A.M. 
 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Councilman Lake gave the invocation. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; Ron Scott. 

 

ABSENT: Derek Boulware; August Palumbo  

 

Also present: Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City 

Attorney; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Preston Bolt, Hand Arendall. 

 

2. DISCUSS:  SERIES 2012 WARRANTS / PRESTON BOLT 

Summary 

Although the mayor can sign the warrant purchase agreement, the council has the final right to approve the warrant 

via the ordinance.  The council needs to be reasonably sure that they are going to approve the final issues.  Once the 

warrant is priced for sales on the open market, if the council then decides not to move forward this will cause a bad 

reaction in the market with direct negative consequences to the City of Daphne for all future issues. Therefore, council 

needs to be sure they are going forward with the issue before the bond is priced even though they have the final right 

to approve the warrant. 

 

In the case of the 2002 warrants they will be paid about 30 days after closing sometime in May.  The 2006 warrants 

are not pre-payable until February 1, 2013 about a year before they will be subject to pre-payment, and at that time 

they will be pre-paid as well.  All money necessary to pay off the 2006 warrants will be transferred to an escrow 

account with Bank of New York Melon where they will be held until the February 2013 interest payment is due with 

the remainder being held until August 2013 for the final pay off. 

 

There are blanks within the ordinance that relate to the pricing of the warrants; the total principal amount that will be 

issued, the maturity amounts for each year that they come due and the interest rates.  In addition there is provision for 

redemption of warrants in the future; both mandatory and optional redemption.  The mandatory redemption is a 

technical part of the underwriting, the optional redemption is an option that they city may choose to use or not use. 

The City’s optional redemption will probably be about eight (8) or so years out for the city to redeem those warrants if 

the council chooses to refinance.  The exact amount of years for the City’s optional redemption will be provided once 

the warrant is priced.  The redemption terms are negotiated on the open market directly with pricing. The only other 

blanks are the naming of the bank which will hold the two (2) custodial accounts for the warrant.  The first custodial 

account is for the cost of issuance of the warrant and the second custodial account is for the new money to be used on 

the capital construction road improvement projects. 

 

Councilman Lake asked if this was typically a bank in the local community.  He said that the city has dealt with the 

Bank of New York in the past. 

 

Mr. Bolt said it could be either, and in this case it will be a local bank.  Ms. Ciancetta has approached several local 

banks for interest rates and fees.  A decision as to which bank will hold the custodial accounts will be chosen by next 

week. 

 

[Mr. Bolt began explaining the time frame the city should plan to spend all of the capital improvement money in 

reference to the city’s eligibility to receive tax rebates.] 

 

 
36



MARCH 26, 2012 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

Mayor Yelding asked if the city starts all of the capital improvement projects, but does not have them completed 

within the two (2) year period, what is the effect on the city. 

 

Mr. Bolt said that is OK except that you would not be eligible for the rebates.  What the city does need to be able to 

say is that you expect to be able to spend at least 85% of the proceeds within three (3) years. 

 

[A question arose regarding the city making any payments to the existing 2002 and 2006 warrants prior to issuance 

of the Series 2012 warrant.] 

 

Mr. Bolt said that if you have money available now to make those payments it can be applied now before the warrant 

is priced.  This would need to be done reasonably quickly or you can continue to pay until 2013 and pay all of them 

off. 

 

Council President Barnette said that the balance will change if they keep paying for the next eight (8) years. 

 

Mr. Bolt said what they will end up with is that all the scheduled payments will be made out of the escrow so they 

could still be using the same source of funds if they want to, but it will be repaying you for what has gone into the 

escrow.  You will be using it to pay debt service on these new warrants instead of the old ones, because the concept of 

a refunding is you set aside enough money, in this case it is invested in Federal Securities Treasury Bonds that will 

mature at the times and in the amounts that are required to make every payment on the outstanding debt.  So that will 

be done without any cash coming directly from the city, but of course, the city will be paying debt service on new 

debt so they could just apply that money in that way.   

 

If there is money set aside that the city wants to apply now you can reduce the size of the new issue somewhat by 

using that as part of the escrow.  That is an option, but it needs to be decided reasonably quickly before this is 

marketed. 

 

Under Section 1.3 Findings of the council (page 19 of packet) the projects are listed, but they have provided in this 

ordinance for council to amend or supplement that list.  So if you don’t need all the money for this list or if council 

decides to do something different from this list a resolution can be adopted an amend the list. 

 

Council President Barnette asked where in the ordinance is the council given the capability of changing the capital 

construction projects? 

 

Mr. Bolt said on page 39 of the packet Section 8.2 in the second paragraph at the bottom of the page.  The only 

condition is that you can’t do anything that affects the tax exempt status.  You could not decide to finance a water 

park that would be leased to somebody else or something like that.  It should be something that is governmental 

purpose. 

 

On page 21 of the packet are some of the blanks.  One of them is the principle amount, and the principle amount 

changes based on what the relative rates are between the refunding portion, the refunding cost and the rates that are 

being paid on the warrants, and so it won’t vary a lot, but it will vary somewhat, and they don’t know what the 

number is until the warrants are actually sold.  The day they are priced it can be figured, the escrow cost for the 

refunding and what the rates are on this, and add $3 million to it for the new money, and that is the way that is arrived.  

Below that is the maturity and the interest rate which will also be filled in for the same reasons. 

 

Mayor Yelding asked if all the blanks will be filled in before they approve the ordinance. 

 

Mr. Bolt said they have to be.  The other blanks are typical.  The warrant is a summary of the basic terms of the debt, 

and is the instrument that is held by the trustees for the benefit of the warrant holders. 
37



MARCH 26, 2012 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

Article IV deals with the nature of the obligation which is a general obligation of the city.  So it is payable out of any 

of the revenues.  The city agrees to maintain the warrant fund at a level sufficient to make debt service payments. 

 

Article V deals with redemption.  This is another blank, and it is possible that there won’t be mandatory redemption.  

There will be optional redemption, but he does not know exactly when that will kick in, probably, eight(8) years based 

on what Pfil thinks the market will do.  So they expect they will go there, but they do not know yet, and that means 

you can pre-pay at Par, no premiums after a certain period of time, and in this case they expect it to be eight (8) years. 

 

Article VII has blanks relating to exactly where all of the warrant proceeds will go once issued; the  amounts are 

blank, and the name of the custodian of the issuance and constructions funds are blank, and they will  fill those in 

once they know how much will be required to refund the 2002 warrants and how much will be required to refund the 

2006 warrants, and then they will have an amount to pay cost of issuance and the $3 million which will be the 

remaining amount which will be almost exactly $3 million, but that is usually where the rounding amount goes, but it 

will be something close to $3 million. 

 

There are a number of covenants with respect to maintaining the tax exempt status of these, and there will also be 

agreements in what is called a tax certificate agreement which is one of the closing documents that will be signed at 

closing, and it will have all the details of how the money is going to be spent, and how it is going to be invested so 

that there is a roadmap for the city to use showing exactly what the city can and cannot do going forward with regard 

to the proceeds 

 

Page 48 / General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Warrants Series 2012 

The most important things that council needs to know about this document is that it is what investors will rely on 

when they make their investment decision, and so it contains information about the securities themselves, about the 

warrant.  It contains financial information concerning the city, and it will be attached to it the city’s most recent audit, 

and it will have summary information from the un-audited numbers for the most recent fiscal year.  It will show 

investors how the money is going to be spent.  It also has a fair amount of information about the city, generally about 

the demographics, economic information, population, where revenues come from so that people can make a 

determination, and it is important that the information is accurate, and it is, secondly, important that the information is 

updated.  So it will be updated each year as the city gets new financial statements, and they will file them. 

 

Page 77 / The Warrant Purchase Agreement 

The purchase agreement is between the City and Gardnyr Michael Capital in the form of a letter from Gardnyr 

Michael to the city which then the city accepts.  It provides for the purchase of several warrants, provides for the 

underwriting discount, and it will have attached to it maturities, interest rates and other information that will appear in 

lots of other places.  It provides for conditions to closing, and he would say that the underwriters conditions to closing 

are fairly typical, it is in Section 6 (page 80 in the packet), and this is new.  This year there are three (3) conditions to 

closing:  

 

1)  that you have adopted the ordinance itself 

    

2)  that the underwriters has certified adequately as to the price at which the warrants were sold which is a tax concept 

which the IRS has suddenly decided is their hot button topic, and they are fawning all over  issuers to make sure that 

the underwriters aren’t cheating the issuers, which he thinks should be the other way round.  It is very important to be 

able to point out that the city has made an effort to make sure the underwriter does his duty, and he will be able to tell 

exactly how the warrants were priced, and how it was done  

 

 3)  Finally, that the city gets a report from the accountants that says that the escrows are adequate to fund the debt 

service to come due on the 2002 and 2006 warrants which protects the city so you don’t get a claim against it later 

that you need to put some more money into the escrow. 
38



MARCH 26, 2012 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

The city is responsible for most of the expenses with regard to the issuance, and those are listed, in a general sort of 

way, in paragraph eight (8) (page 83 of the packet) nothing unusual there.  The purchase agreement would be signed 

and presented by Gardnyr Michael on the day the warrants are priced.  Then either that day or the next day the Mayor 

will sign it subject to council approval at the next meeting or the following meeting. 

 

There are two (2) escrow trust agreements.  The first one begins on page 87, and the second one begins on page 95.  

The first one relates to the 2002 warrants, and it is pretty simple, both of these are the form they use for this.  It 

provides for the money to pay these outstanding warrants to be set aside so that the city can’t get to it, and no one else 

can get to it except to pay debt service on the outstanding warrants, and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 

Company will be the trustee for both of those escrows, and will pay the money out as it needs to be paid out.  The 

2002 warrants they will hold approximately 30 days, and then they will apply the money, and pay off all the warrants, 

and it will be gone.  The 2006 warrants is somewhat more complicated, although, not terribly, in that it provides that 

the money that goes in will be invested in what are called “SLUGS”, State and Local Government Series Treasury’s 

with a prescribed interest rate that is designed not to violate the arbitrage restrictions so that you do not have to worry 

about whether you invested and made too much money off it, and also you can know exactly how much is going to be 

earned on each date, and those treasury’s will come due on the dates they need to come due to pay debt service as it is 

due.  So both timing and interest rates are set to meet the city’s requirements.   Unfortunately, the rates on that like 

everything else are terrible right now so you will be paying negative arbitrages they way it is referred to in the market, 

that is, you will be loosing money between the yield you are paying the debt and what you are earning on this. 

 

Mr. Ross said it is envisioned that at the next council meeting the ordinance will be passed so he asked how long after 

that for all this to get done? 

 

Mr. Bolt said the closing will be scheduled sometime around the 16
th
 or so of April.  All the figures will be in the 

ordinance for the Monday meeting.  The hope is that you will have everything Friday that council will need to 

approve the ordinance with all the blanks filled in.  It is possible that they will be doing some correcting over the 

weekend, but it will be minor.  They are supposed to have the pricing information Thursday.   

 

 

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
No one spoke for or against Ordinance 2012-26. 

 

 

3. SERIES 2012 WARRANTS / ORDINANCE 2012-26 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

a.) Calling for the Redemption of the City’s General Obligation Warrants 

Series 2002 and the Redemption of the City’s Limited Obligation 

Special Tax Warrants, Series 2006. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-28 

 

NO ACTION WAS TAKEN FOR RESOLUTION 2012-28.  IT WILL BE ON THE APRIL 2, 2012 COUNCIL 

MEETING FOR ADOPTION. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
39



MARCH 26, 2012 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

 

ORDINANCES 

 

1
ST

 READ 

a.) Authorizing the Issuance of $___________ of General Obligation  

Refunding And Improvement Warrants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-26 

 

ORDINANCE 2012-26 WAS MADE A 1
ST

 READ. 

 

4.  ADJOURN 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:22 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                 

                             
 

________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC                   

                                                             Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

        _________________________________                                                                              

        Cathy S. Barnette, 

        Council President 

 

 

 

40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

57



58



59



60



61



62



63



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

64



65



66



March 26, 2012 

CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

6:00 P.M.  

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

 

Members present – Joe Davis, Toni Fassbender, Dennis Kerney, Dan Romanchuk, and Doug Bailey 

Also present – David Cohen 

 

2. OLD BUSINESS 

 

The IDB discussed the need to send a check for incentive for Mario Castaneda which was signed thereafter.  

Mr. Davis volunteered to be the communication director. 

 

3.  TREASURERS REPORT 

 

    Mr. Romanchuk gave the treasure’s report with a balance of $233,971.60. 

 

Motion by Mr. Davis  Seconded by Mr. Bailey  To accept the treasure’s report. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR   NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 

4.   NEW BUSINESS 

 

None 

   

5.  OTHER BUSINESS 

 

None      

 

6.   ADJOURN 

 

Motion by Mr. Romanchuk Seconded by Mr. Bailey  To adjourn. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR  NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

      

 

 THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS THE MEETING 

 ADJOURNED AT  6:38 P.M. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________ 

David L. Cohen, Secretary 

 

Approved: 

________________________ 

Toni Fassbender, Chairman 

67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

85



86



87



88



89



90



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

91



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

92



93



94



95



96



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE 2012-21 
 

 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE RULES OF PROCEDURE IN ALL 

INSTANCES FOR MEETINGS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA that the Order Procedure in All Instances for Meetings of the City Council 

shall be as follows: 

 

SECTION I: 

 

 That the Rules of Procedure herein contained shall govern the liberations and 

meetings of all of the Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 

 

SECTION II: 

 

 That the regular meetings of the City Council shall be held on the first and third 

Mondays of each month, which meeting shall convene at 6:30 p.m. at the City Hall 

Council Chamber and all meetings, regular and special, shall be opened to the public, 

except when Council meets in executive session as authorized by State law.  The 

regularly scheduled work session will be held on the Monday between the first and 

second council meeting at 6:30 p.m. at the City Hall Council Chambers.  Items for the 

agenda must be turned in by 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday before the work session. 

 

SECTION III: 

 

 That special meetings may be held at the call of the presiding officer by serving 

notice on each member of the Council not less than twenty-four hours before the time set 

for such special called meeting.  All special meetings may be held as provided by Section 

11-43-50 Code of Alabama, 1975 (as amended).  Furthermore, any two (2) Council 

members shall have the right to call for a special meeting.  Notice of all special meetings 

shall be posted on a bulletin board and appropriate customary media notified, and is 

accessible to the public twenty-four hours prior to such scheduled meeting. 

 

SECTION IV: 

 

 A Quorum shall be determined as provided by Section 11-43-40, Code of 

Alabama, 1975, (as amended). 

 

 

 

97



ORDINANCE 2012-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE        PAGE   2 

 

           

SECTION V: 

 

 That the order of business of each council meeting shall be as follows: 

 

 1. Call to Order 

 

 2. Roll Call/Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 3. Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting(s) 

 

 4. Reports of Standing Committees: 

   Finance Committee 

   Building/Property Committee 

   Planning/Zoning Code Enforcement Committee 

   Public Safety/Ordinance Committee 

   Public Works/Solid Waste Committee 

 

 5. Reports of Special Boards and Commissions 

   Board of Zoning Adjustment 

   Downtown Redevelopment Authority 

   Industrial Development Board 

   Library Board 

   Planning Commission 

   Recreation Board 

   Utility Board 

 

 6. Report of Officers: 

   a. Mayors Report 

   b. City Attorney Report 

   c. Department Heads Report 

 

 7. Public Participation 

 

 8. Resolution Ordinances and Other Business 

  

 9. Council Comments 

 

 10. Adjournment 

 

 

 
 

98



ORDINANCE 2012-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE        PAGE   3 

 

 

SECTION VI: 

 

 That any item including all background material to be placed on agenda must be 

turned in by 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday before the council meeting to the City Clerk 

subject to the review of the Council President.  The council packet will be sent to the full 

City Council by 12:00 p.m. Friday before the City Council Meeting. 

 

SECTION VII: 

 

 That no member shall speak more than twice on the same subject without 

permission of the presiding officer, and after all other council members have had the 

opportunity to speak. 

 

SECTION VIII: 

 

 That no individual who is not a member of the City Council or the Mayor shall be 

allowed to address the same while in session without permission of the presiding officer 

and for not more than three (3) minutes, unless approved by the presiding officer.  No 

person shall be allowed to address the Council on any matter which shall be the subject of 

a public hearing scheduled by the Council until the meeting under which the public 

hearing on that matter is scheduled to be heard.  An individual wishing to speak to the 

council will permission of the Council President will be allowed 5 minutes.  The 

individual must provide in writing a synopsis of the topic to be discussed.  This synopsis 

is to be delivered to the City Clerk by the Wednesday before the council meeting at 5:00 

p.m. 

 

SECTION IX: 

 

 That those motions to reconsider must be made by a council member who voted 

with the majority at the same or next succeeding meeting of the Council. 

 

SECTION X: 

 

 That whenever it shall be required by one or more members the "ayes" and the 

"nays" shall be recorded and any member may cal for a division on any question. 

 

SECTION XI: 

 

 That all questions of order shall be decided by the presiding officer of the Council 

with the right of appeal to the Council. 

Ordinance             
 

99



ORDINANCE 2012-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE        PAGE   4 

 

 

SECTION XII: 
 

 That the presiding officer of the Council may, at his or her discretion, call any 

members to take the chair to allow him or her to address the Council or make a motion or 

discuss ay other matter at issue. 

 

SECTION XIII: 

 

 That motions to lay any matter on the table shall be first in order, and on all 

questions, the last amendment, the most distant day, and the largest sum shall be first put. 

 

SECTION XVI: 

 

 That Council may meet in executive session only for purposes authorized by State 

law.  When a council person makes a motion for executive session for an enumerated 

purpose, the presiding officer shall put the motion to vote.  If the majority of the council 

shall vote in favor of the Motion for executive session the body shall then move into 

executive session for discussion of the matter for which executive session was called.  No 

action may be taken in an executive session.  When the discussion has been completed, 

the council shall resume its deliberations in public. 

 

SECTION XV: 

 

 That a motion for adjournment shall always be in order. 

 

SECTION XVI: 

 

 That the rules of the Council may be amended in the same manner as any other 

ordinance of general or permanent nature. 

 

SECTION XVII: 

 

 That the rules of the Council may be temporarily suspended by unanimous vote of 

all members present. 

 

SECTION XVIII: 

 

 That the chair of each respective committee, or the council member acting for him 

or her, shall submit and make report to the Council when so requested by the presiding 

officer or any member of the Council. 

Ordinance             

100



 
ORDINANCE 2012-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE        PAGE   5 

 

 

SECTION XIX: 

 

 That all ordinances, resolutions or propositions submitted to Council which 

require the expenditure of money will lie over until the next Council meeting; provided 

that such ordinance, resolution or propositions may be considered earlier by unanimous 

consent of the Council members present at such meeting by roll call vote and provided 

further that this rule shall not apply to the current expenses of, or contracts previously 

made with, or regular salaries of officers, or wages of employees of the City. 

 

SECTION XX: 

 

 That all motions, resolutions, ordinances or other business required to be in 

writing shall be prepared and supplied to all Council members by twelve noon one full 

city work day before the Council meeting in which it is to be presented.  (e.g. if City 

offices are not open, the Friday before the Monday council meeting, then the writings and 

documentation shall be supplied to each city council member by placing same in each 

member's mailbox at City Hall by noon Thursday.) 

 

a. It is desired that information be supplied to the City Clerk in time to be made part 

 of the agenda packet.  

 

b. When a work session is called or scheduled between two council meetings, all 

 motions, resolutions, ordinances or other business required to be in writing shall 

 be presented in substantially the same form as that which is required for 

 presentation at council meeting. 

 

c. Notwithstanding Sections a. and b., hereinabove, in the situation of an actual 

 emergency sections a. and b., hereinabove, shall not apply.  For purposes herein an 

 actual emergency exist from failure to act will result in an immediate and 

 irrefutable harm to the City or any of its citizens and or otherwise it was physically 

 impossible to comply with notice requirements set forth herein as the same may 

 be determined by the presiding officer of the Council. 

 

SECTION XXI: 

 

 That the City Clerk, City Engineer, City Attorney, Chief of Police and Fire Chief 

and such other officers and employees shall, when requested, attend all meetings of the 

City Council, and shall otherwise remain in the Council Chamber for such length of time 

as the Council, presiding officer or Mayor may direct. 

 

101



         
ORDINANCE 2012-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE        PAGE   6 

 

 

SECTION XXII: 

 

 That the City Council may have the ability to have a discussion on any motion. 

 

SECTION XXIII: 

 

 That Roberts' Rules of Order be and is hereby adopted as the rules of procedure 

for this Council in those situations which cannot be resolved by the rules set forth in this 

Ordinance. 

 

SECTION XXIV: 

 

 The City Council will set all public hearings by a majority vote.  At all public 

hearings after the initial presentation all questions and comments are limited to three (3) 

minutes per speaker. 

 

SECTION XXV: 

 

 All motions that come from committees must still be seconded. 

 

SECTION XXVI: 

 

 That Ordinance 2009-21 be and is hereby repealed in its entirety and that other 

ordinance(s), parts of ordinance(s) or resolutions(s) conflicting with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed insofar as they conflict. 

 

SECTION XXVII: 

 

 That the provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any provision, section, 

paragraph, sentence are part thereof shall be held to be unconstitutional or invalid by a 

court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not effect or impair the remainder of 

this Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and act each provision section, 

paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

 

SECTION XXVIII: 

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect and be enforced from and after approval by the 

City Council of the City of Daphne upon publication required by law. 

 

 

102



 

 
ORDINANCE 2012-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE        PAGE   7 

 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA on this the ____ day of _______________, 

2012. 

 

 

  CITY OF DAPHNE, AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       CATHY S. BARNETTE 

       COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       BAILEY YELDING, JR., 

       MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

DAVID L. COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

103



ORDINANCE 2012 - 22 
 
 

City Hall Roof Repairs Appropriation 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Building Maintenance department has been monitoring the roof 
condition in the old section of the City Hall building, and 
 
WHEREAS, certain improvements and repairs are needed at the City Hall to 
maintain and protect the existing roof structure and building. 
 
WHEREAS, repair estimates have shown that plans are needed for this project to 
be bid, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $1,500 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget to prepare plans for 
the repair and maintenance of the City Hall Roof. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

   Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

104



ORDINANCE 2012-23  
 
 

Civic Center Kitchen Hood Fire Suppression System Appropriation 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Civic Center’s current Kitchen Hood Fire Suppression System is 
outdated and the unit has been recalled;   
 
WHEREAS, the Civic Center was notified that if the unit was not replaced before 
the next inspection time this part of the kitchen would be shut down. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $2,859 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for a new Kitchen 
Hood Fire Suppression System for the Civic Center. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this ____  day of  ________________    , 2012. 
        
                                                                      ________________________________ 

   Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

105



ORDINANCE 2012 -24 
 
 

Legislative Phone/Internet Budget Appropriation 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the adopted budget does not include an appropriation for additional 
internet connection through Mediacom for the City Clerk’s office; and 
 
WHEREAS, additional internet band width was required for the City Clerk to upload 
the Council packet to the City’s website and to e-mail the packet out.     
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $1,000 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for additional internet 
services from Mediacom for the City Clerk’s office. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this ____  day of  ________________  , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

   Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

106



ORDINANCE 2012 - 25 
 
 

Youth Spring Soccer Program Appropriation 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the adopted budget does not include an appropriation for the Youth 
Spring Soccer Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Recreation Department provides several athletic programs for the 
community and the interest in a Spring Soccer program has increased; and 
 
WHEREAS, the number of participants currently signed up for the Spring Soccer 
Program is 236 and fees will be collected from these participants to later offset the 
cost.     
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $9,750 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget to fund the Spring 
Soccer Program. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this ____ day of  ________________  , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

   Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Bailey Yelding, Jr. , Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2012-27 

 

Ordinance to Rezone Property Located  

Southwest of the Intersection of U.S. Highway 90 and County Road 13 

Blacksher White-Spunner, etal 

 
 WHEREAS, Blacksher White-Spunner, etal, as the owner of certain real property located within 

the City of Daphne, Alabama, has requested that said property be rezoned from R-3, High Density Single 

Family Residential District to B-1, Local Business District; and, 

 

WHEREAS, said real property is southwest of the intersection of U.S. Highway 90 and County 

Road 13, and more particularly described as follows:  

 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY TO BE REZONED FROM R-3 TO B-1: 

 
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 33, T4S-R2E, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; SAID 

POINT BEING ON THE EAST BOUNDARY OF LAKE FOREST, UNIT 25, AS PER PLAT RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 8, 

PAGE 86 OF THE PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE ALONG SAID EAST 

BOUNDARY OF LAKE FOREST, UNIT 25, RUN N 00° 16' 26" E 468.87 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 

LAKE FOREST, UNIT 25 AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED; SAID POINT 

BEING ON THE CENTERLINE OF THE EAST PRONG OF D'OLIVE CREEK; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY 

OF SAID LAKE FOREST, UNIT 25 AND SAID CENTERLINE OF THE EAST PRONG OF D'OLIVE CREEK, RUN S 77° 44' 

11" W 96.31 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTH BOUNDARY OF LAKE FOREST, UNIT 25 

AND SAID CENTERLINE OF THE EAST PRONG OF D'OLIVE CREEK, RUN S 86° 00' 27" W 200.95 FEET TO A POINT; 

THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTH BOUNDARY OF LAKE FOREST, UNIT 25 AND SAID CENTERLINE OF 

THE EAST PRONG OF D'OLIVE CREEK, RUN S 51° 06' 47" W 62.95 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG 

SAID NORTH BOUNDARY OF LAKE FOREST, UNIT 25 AND SAID CENTERLINE OF THE EAST PRONG OF D'OLIVE 

CREEK, RUN S 77° 39' 00" W 85.86 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTH BOUNDARY OF 

LAKE FOREST, UNIT 25 AND SAID CENTERLINE OF THE EAST PRONG OF D'OLIVE CREEK, RUN S 59° 41' 00" W 

214.16 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTH BOUNDARY OF LAKE FOREST, UNIT 25 AND 

SAID CENTERLINE OF THE EAST PRONG OF D'OLIVE CREEK, RUN N 80° 14' 08" W 67.29 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE 

CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTH BOUNDARY OF LAKE FOREST, UNIT 25 AND SAID CENTERLINE OF THE EAST 

PRONG OF D'OLIVE CREEK, RUN S 89° 25' 57" W 95.88 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID 

NORTH BOUNDARY OF LAKE FOREST, UNIT 25 AND SAID CENTERLINE OF THE EAST PRONG OF D'OLIVE CREEK, 

RUN S 74° 28' 15" W 205.84 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTH BOUNDARY OF LAKE 

FOREST, UNIT 25 AND SAID CENTERLINE OF THE EAST PRONG OF D'OLIVE CREEK, RUN N 41° 02' 51" W 148.88 

FEET TO A POINT; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTH BOUNDARY OF LAKE FOREST, UNIT 25 AND SAID 

CENTERLINE OF THE EAST PRONG OF D'OLIVE CREEK, RUN N 59° 59' 33" W 73.71 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST 

CORNER OF LAKE FOREST, UNIT 24, AS PER PLAT RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 8, PAGE 85 OF THE 

AFOREMENTIONED PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH 

BOUNDARY OF LAKE FOREST, UNIT 24 AND SAID CENTERLINE OF THE EAST PRONG OF D'OLIVE CREEK, RUN N 

40° 17' 16" W 202.35 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTH BOUNDARY OF LAKE FOREST, 

UNIT 24 AND SAID CENTERLINE OF THE EAST PRONG OF D'OLIVE CREEK, RUN N 51° 54' 58" W 79.42 FEET TO A 

POINT; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTH BOUNDARY OF LAKE FOREST, UNIT 24 AND SAID 

CENTERLINE OF THE EAST PRONG OF D'OLIVE CREEK, RUN N 32° 57' 38" W 69.21 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST 

CORNER OF OAK CREEK SUBDIVISION, AS PER PLAT RECORDED ON SLIDE NO. 2205-D OF SAID PROBATE COURT 

RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID OAK CREEK 

SUBDIVISION, RUN N 00° 50' 07" W 2201.98 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID OAK CREEK SUBDIVISION; 

SAID POINT BEING ON THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF U.S. HIGHWAY 90; THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH 

RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF U.S. HIGHWAY 90, RUN N 89° 03' 35" E 65.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE 

PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE CONTINUING N 89° 03' 35" E ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE 

OF U.S. HIGHWAY 90, RUN A DISTANCE OF 540.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN S 00° 56' 25" W 275.00 FEET TO A 

POINT; THENCE RUN S 89° 03' 35" W 540.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN N 00° 56' 25" E 275.00 FEET TO THE 

POINT OF BEGINNING.  CONTAINING 148,500 SQUARE FEET OR 3.4092 ACRES. 

 

 

WHEREAS, at the City of Daphne Planning Commission meeting on February 23, 2012 the 

Commission considered said request and failed to set forth a favorable recommendation to the City Council 

of the City of Daphne that said property be rezoned; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed rezoning has been provided to the public as required by 

law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City Hall, a public hearing was 

held before the City Council on April 2, 2012; and, 
219



 
ORDINANCE 2012- 27                         REZONE: BLACHSHER WHITE-SPUNNER                      PAGE   2 

 

 

  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon consideration 

of the recommendation of the Planning Commission, deemed that said application for rezoning of the above 

described real property is proper and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the 

City of Daphne, Alabama;  and 

 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows 

 

SECTION I: ZONING 

 

That above described real property is hereby rezoned from R-3, High Density Single Family 

Residential District to B-1, Local Business District, and that the zoning ordinance and zoning map be 

amended to reflect the said zoning change.    

 

SECTION II: REPEALER.  

 

 All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, in so far as 

they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.  
 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence, or part 

thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the remainder of said 

Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and 

part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 

 This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the City 

Council of the City of Daphne and after publication as required by law. 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS             day of                       , 2012. 

         

 

       _____________________________ 

       Cathy S. Barnette,  

       Council President 

                                        

       _____________________________ 

       Bailey Yelding, Jr.,  

Mayor 
 

 

ATTEST: 
__________________ 

David L. Cohen  

City Clerk, MMC 

220



221



222



 

 1 

 CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2012- 28 

 

An Ordinance adopting and enacting the 2005 Supplement Code for the City of Daphne, 

Alabama providing for the repeal of certain ordinances not included therein; providing a 

penalty for the violation thereof; providing for the manner of amending such Code; and 

providing when such Code and this ordinance shall become effective. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA: 

 

SECTION 1:  The Code entitled "Code of Ordinance, City of Daphne, Alabama" published by 

Municipal Code Corporation consisting of Chapters 1 through 20, each inclusive, is adopted; as 

public notice of adoption is provided in Resolution No. 2006-23 adopted the 6th day of March, 

2006, as required by Code of Alabama Section 11-45-88 for the adoption of codes in book form. 

 

SECTION 2:  All ordinances of a general and permanent nature enacted on or before August 16, 

1993, and not included in the Code or recognized and continued in force by reference therein, are 

repealed. 

 

SECTION 3:  The repeal provided for in Section 2 hereof shall not be construed to revive any 

ordinance or part thereof that has been repealed by a subsequent ordinance that is repealed by 

this ordinance. 

 

SECTION 4:  Unless another penalty is expressly provided, every person convicted of a 

violation of any provision of the Code or any ordinance, rule or regulation adopted or issued 

in pursuance thereof, shall be punished by a fine of not more than five hundred dollars ($500.00) 

and imprisonment for not more than six (6) months, or both.  Each act of violation and each day 

upon which any such violation shall occur shall constitute a separate offense.  The penalty 

provided by this section, unless another penalty is expressly provided shall apply to the 

amendment of any Code section whether or not such penalty is reenacted in the amendatory 

ordinance.  In addition to the penalty prescribed above, the City may pursue other remedies such 

as abatement of nuisances, injunctive relief, and revocation of licenses or permits. 

 

SECTION 5:  Additions or amendments to the Code when passed in form as to indicate the 

intention of the City Council to make the same a part of the Code shall be deemed to be 

incorporated in the Code, so that reference to the Code includes the additions and amendments. 

 

SECTION 6:  Ordinances adopted after August 16, 1993 that amend or refer to ordinances that 

have been codified in the Code, shall be construed as if they amend or refer to like provisions of 

the Code. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

223



 

 2 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2012-28                                                                           PAGE TWO 

RE: CODIFICATION MANUAL - SUPPLEMENT 

 

 

SECTION 7:  Severability Clause - The provisions of this ordinance and the Daphne Code of 

Ordinances adopted hereby are severable. In the event that any of the provisions hereof, or of the 

Daphne Code of Ordinances are declared invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the 

remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding such invalidity. 

 

SECTION 8:  This ordinance shall become effective upon publication of such notice. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

THIS           day of             , 2012. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      CATHY S. BARNETTE 

      COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

       

 

 

      _____________________________________ 

      BAILEY YELDING, JR., 

      MAYOR 

       

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

DAVID L. COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

 

                                                                  

224


	AGENDA - April 2.pdf
	City Roll Call.pdf
	Council Minutes - March 19.pdf
	Backup to Council Minutes - March 19.pdf
	Council Work Session Minutes - March 12.pdf
	Backup to Work Session Minutes.pdf
	Council Mintues  - March 26 2012 -  Special Call  (Bond).pdf
	Proclamation - Telecommunicators Week.pdf
	Public Hearing Info.pdf
	Reporting of Standing Committees.pdf
	Public Safety Minutes.pdf
	Special Reports.pdf
	BZA - Resignation.pdf
	Industrial Development Board March 26 Minutes.pdf
	Planning Commission Minutes.pdf
	Mayors Report.pdf
	Parade Permits.pdf
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report.pdf
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE.pdf
	2012-28 - RES - Refinance Warrants 2002 & 2012 Series.pdf
	2012-22 - ORD - City Hall Roof Repair.pdf
	2012-23 - ORD - Civic Center Hood Suppression System.pdf
	2012-24 - ORD - Legislative Phone Budget-Mediacom Internet.pdf
	2012-25 - ORD - Soccer - Youth Spring Soccer Program.pdf
	2012-26 - ORD.pdf
	2012-27 - ORD - REZONE  - Blacksher White-Spunner, eral.pdf
	Backup to 2012-27 - ORD.pdf
	2012-21 - ORD - COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE.pdf
	2012-28 - ORD - CODIFICATION OF ORDINANCES.pdf



